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December 4. 2007

Re: Charter Complaint No. 2007--Q6 Price v. Wichita Transit

Dear Sirs:

ITA previously advised you ofm:eipt oflhe above referenced wrinen chaner complaint. ITA
has reached a decision in lhe maner. and that decision is attached herelO. The decision requires the
City 10 provide cenain infonnation to ITA within 10 days of the dale Oflhis !ener. Therefore.
please provide me with written evidence requested before or no laler than December 14. 2007.
You are also reminded to please provide the same infonnation 10 the complainant.

If you have any questions regarding the charter complainl process please conlactlhe Regional
Counsel: Paul11.Schwach@'dol.govor816.329.3935.

Sincerely.

~\.ldAJ L\ J
Mokhlce Ahmad
Regional Administralor

Cc: Elizabeth Manineau. TCC
Mr. Mike Vinson, Wichita Transil



BEFORE THE FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION

Homer ?rice.
River City Trolley and Charter. LLC.
(Complainam)

,.

CityofWichita. KS dlbJa
Wichita Transit
(Respondent)

Background

DECISIO:\,

Charter Complaint No. 2007-06

The City of Wichita. with a population of appro~imately320.000. and doing business as
Wichita Transit ("WT' or the '"City") operates a fleet of fifty-one vehicles. "hich
indudes l\!.'o. FTA-funded trolley buses and forty-nine"26'-35" buses used for fi;o;ed·route
service. The current peak requirement is for forty-three vehicles. WT also operates a
fi;o;ed route flee! of five City-owned trolleys that offer transportation on Saturdays to core
area 31lf3Ctions. provides transportation for the Wichita Historical Tours. and is available
for charter. ITA did not participate in the purchase ofthesc five trolleys. FTA-funded
facilities include: the downtown Transit Center, I'.hich serves as thc hub for transfcrs
and customer services: and the Transportation Operations Center (""TOC") opened in
1999 and located at 777 East Watennan Street in Wichita, Kansas. The administration.
daily operations. and maintenance services are provided from the TOC,

In 2005. FTA issued a Final Triennial Report to the City which contained the following
finding and corrective action:

Findin~: During this Triennial Review ofWT. a deficiency was found with the
FTA requirements for charter bus. WT uses locally owned trolley buses for the
provision ofcharter service. The locally owned buses are stored ami maintained
in a federally-funded maintenance facility. At the site visit. WT could
demonstrate that this charter operation was physically and financially independent
from and received no benefit from WT's provision of mass transi\. In a leller
dated July 21. 2005. WT r<:Quested guidance from the FTA, pertaining to the
slOrage and maintenance of trolleys in a federally funded facility.

Corrective Action and Schedule: Within 90 days. WT must provide the FTA
Region VII Office with documentation ofprocedures to implement the separation
of locally-owned charter vehicles from FTA funded mass transit operations.
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August 11.2005. FTA issued a charter advisory opinion to the City in response to a series
of questions raised by Jay Banasiak. General Manager for Wichita Transit. a department
of the City. in a leucr ofJuly 21. 2005. This advisory opinion is a public record which
may be found on FTA's public website among olher recent chancr decisions. The
questions raised by the City related to community Clcnl shunles and trolley operations
and service to public officials.

May 10. 2006. FTA received a lener from Mr. Homer Price. O"t1CT of River City Trolley
and Chaner. LL.C.. ("River Cily"'). complaining that the City housed its privately
funded trolleys in a federally funded facility. the Transit Operation Cenler and thai
Wichita Metro Transit Authority I in the year 2004 and eominued to do so. This was
followed by 11'0 more letters from complainant expanding the initial complaint to add
service to a school prom in 2006 and other serviccs. ITA advised the panies to atlempt
to conciliate the dispute. The parties did conciliate the dispute and the complaint was
dropped. ITA ISSUed no decision in the maneT.

The City executed a 2006 Chaner Agreement with Mr. Price which outlined charters the
City could provide by trip t}pe. An addendum to this Chaner Agreement was executed
on December 21. 2006. and stated: ··that Wichita Transit wtll forward to River City
Trolley and Charter all trolley chaner requests for two or less (sic) trolleys. In the event
River City Trolley and Chaner refuses a forward trolley request (unable or unwilling).
River City Trolley and Charter will return the re<:juest back to Wichita Transit for normal
scheduling. ..

Current Complaint

May 1. 2007, Mr. Homer Price, owner ofRi\'eT City, contacted ITA bye-mail
complaining that the City ·..... as still booking Trolley Charters even after our agreement
had been signed." The agreement in question was one pursuant to the annual notice for
willing and able providers required by 49 C.F.R. 604.9(a).' The complainant makes no
claim that there was any problem with the annual notice.

, Wichita \Ie"o Tran,it Authority "-as a p~sor agency. Tho WI,hi,. ~t,trOp<>h,""Transi. Au!b<>ri'y
,...a, "eatw in 1%6 by City Ordinance as a ...mi·au'oroomous Igency of the Ci'y. By ~Iu"on dalOd
Febru3ry 20. t975. tho City <Io5ignated WMTA as tho recipl"'" or IU Fodonl ,apllll 'M oporating runds
for publi, 1T1lIlSn I,,'i\'i.i... effmi"ety implemontiJIi tbe K.tI5.l' T..ns't System A,t (Arti<:1e 31 ofChap10T
13 of tho K."",s SUlru.. Anno,.,w). tn 1997, I ,esolution ""as enacted to incofJ'Ol"Ote WMTA in10 tho
City', hieran:hy. makinll WMTA a <l<-partmtnt or the City. Tho City of Wichita operates uansit usiJIi tho
name to Wi"hila Transit ("'"1).
, 49 C.F.R. 604,9(1)' -tfa recipIent d..u-.s to p,o,'id< .ny "harter ..."iee u'iJIi ITA equipment 0' facihtle,t'" ",,,ipicru must first de1ennino if the... are Iny pri,·... charter opentl0'" ,,;tling and able to pro' id< tho
,hane' ,e,,,ice ..-hich tho redpioot do,ores to provide. To the extenltha. t...... i. alte...t one such pri"ate
open"',. tho Ittiplont is prohibited from pro"idiJIi charter .......·ic. "ith ITA runde<! equipmenl or fac~itie,

uokss One or rmro of1he exceptions in Sectioo ~.9(b) apph.. -
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Instead the complaint is that the City violated Ihe agreement entered into pursuam to the
charter exception al 49 C.F.R. 604.9(11)(7).3 Funhemlore. complainant argues thallhe
specific charter for a wedding party on Saturday. April 21. 2007. for ",hich the couple
chartered a lrolley through the City. failed 10 "show up at the Cathedrial (sic) then left.
did nOI even wait for the wedding party, so ",hen the wedding party called the transit
center they were sent a city bus out to take Ihe wedding party from the Cathcdralto the
reception location. the driver would nOI let the wedding party make any stops in between
locations to take pictures. The photogher (sic) and wedding party was very upset about
this mishap and wa;; blaming River City Trolley and Charter L.LC until they spoke with
me on April 28. 2007 and found out it "'as not me that they had booked the ChaneT wilh.
This stains our repuUltion about how we conduci business....River Cily Trolley was not
given Ihe oPJXlnunity to chaner this wedding."" Complainant also SUlles thallhe Cily
was in noneompliance with FTA's ehaner rule in each of the following additional
inslances:

February 17, 2007
April 21, 2007
May 19, 2007

May 25. 2007
May 26. 2007

Two Trolleys to Ihc Anchor for a Pany
One Trolley for Alpha Phi al Larkspur
Personally observed 4 trolleys going out of the TOC,
including one to a wedding al Eastminster Church, one 10

piek up the groom and his pany: two other single lrolley
chaners
Two Trolleys for Roxie Smilh
Two Trolleys shunling from a parking lot at 21" and Oli\"er
to a wedding al a privale residence a few blocks down from
Oli\"eraI21"

Finally. Tara Xaypanya, Ihe Cily's scheduler for trolleys, and Julie Price, the Ri,er City
scheduler. had telephone conlacl regarding the above dates and Julie repons that Tara's
"slandard answer is they were all booked in June of2006 before our first agreement was
signed."

FTA did nOI recommend informal conciliation of the 2007 complainl believing based on
an exchange wilh Ihe complainant that il would not be useful 10 a full and continuing
resolUlion. Thcre is an indirect allegation in the instant complaint that privately-funded
trolleys o'wned by the Cily of Wichita are housed within the FTA-funded Transit
Operation Center.

• 49 C.F.R. 604.~b)(7), '"A =ipicn, may provide eharter .. ,viee dlrectly 10 the CUSlomer wbere a formal
agreemenl bas been execute<! bet.wttn the recip'en, ond oU pn,..te ehaner ope....1OfS i[ has del<'l"m1l>C<l '0 be
"'lling and able ill aecordan;:e ..."h lhi$ pan.
• Poge 2 ofe-mailed complaint. dated May \, 2007.
~. Complainant ,to,.. [hal be personolly obser,ed lrOUey< leoving ,he Wichito T....nsi' Cemer. i,e., the
TOC. SlI",e!he TOC "'os no[ a mIl' oa the chanered tnI'. the mfere",e is tho, ,be 1r01Ieys "'.... SIOre<! there
and di'JIlllc!>ed flOm there. Thi, would make the j>riYOtely funded ,'.hides subject [0 the chaner rule
because m. TOC i,. "flU:ihty" ",ithin m. meamng of49 C.F.R. 604.9(a).
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The Citv's Response

July 27. 2007. the City provided a copy of the first page of the Charter Agreement
between the panies for services provided on February 16. 2007, ApriIZ!, 2007. May 26.
2007. and May 19. 2007. The charters were all for one trolley except for the February 16
and the April 21, 2007 charters. These contracts were entered into on September 19,
2006. and Jantllll)' 16. 2007. respecti'·cly. The City indicated that il "does nol advertise
10 charter trolleys bUllake;; requests when called upon and. if the request is for two
lrollc)'1i or less (sic), forv.'ards them to RTC [Rh'cr City] for their scheduling:' The City
slated thai ..Federally~funded trolleys (two) are not used for charters and are considered
part of the bus division, operating on regular fixed bus routes as "'ell as our Q-line route:'
City-owned trolleys also operate Q-Line roUles. as necessary, and have Q-line advertising
on them. The City stated that "it has perfOJ1Tloo only 38 eharters since January I, 2007,"

In response to the specific instances of non-compliance complained of by River City. the
City replied as follows:

l. February 17, 2007. was booked on January 16, 2007, when the addendum to the
agreement for threshold size was new and not all statTwas totally familiar with
the addendum yel,

2, April 21. 2007 two trolleys for E, Wooten was contractoo September 19, 2006:
agreement for two trolleys started December 23. 2006.

3. April 2\, 2007. was a referral to River City of Alpha Phi and River City referred
the party back to the City. Evidence has been provided 10 support this assertion in
the fOJ1Tl of e·mail exchanges betwe<,'O the City's scheduler and River City's
scheduler dated March 28, 2007.

4. May 19. 2007. only two (not four) vehicles were chartered to ~tr. Tom Boles.
Other vehicles obscr.ed leaving the transit [operationsJcenter on that date could
have been regular route, test drives, or other reasons: no other charters were
scheduled that day.

5. May 25, 2007-two trolleys for Roxy Smith: contract was signed June 29, 2006.
6. May 26, 2007-two trolleys for Pat Dehart: contract signed June 27, 2006.
7. Wichita Transit has proposed to the City Council that it discontinue its trolley

division. including selling or leasing the three City-owned trolleys and
transferring the t.... o Federally-funded trolleys 10 the bus division. The City would
thereafter not charter any trolleys pursuant to the exception at Section 49 C.F.R.
604.9{b)(7).

River Citv's Reply ofJuly 29, 2007

I. River City agrees generally with responsc 1 and 2 abo\e, except as follows:
(a) The May 25, 2007. scr\ice is not the correct date. Thc scrvice must have

occurred on May 25. 2006, because Mr. Price had a signed contract with
her that was dated September 25. 2006. and Ms. Roxie Smith decided to
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go with the City chaner after signing this agreement with River City. Ms.
Smith had contact with RCT three days before her charter looking for
another vchicle but the City could not provide her wilh a third because all
of its trolleys were booked: and.

(b) The May 19,2007 service could 001 have been only two trolleys chancred
to Mr. Boles. While City claims other trolleys observed leaving Ihe TOC
were engage in public transportation, the buses were OUltoo lale on a
Samrday nighl for the service \0 be a regular roule, and there were no
mechanics on duty for test drives so latc.

2. River Cily disputes that not all relevant transit employees were familiar with the
(haner Agreement immediately. There is only one person by the name of Tara
(Xa>panya, the Wichita Transit Scheduler) that is a Chaner Employe<: and "'hen
the agreement between the City and River City was signed "'ith Me. Showalter of
the City, a copy of the agreemem was laid on her desk that same day. Therefore
the Febroary 17 booking was a violation of the agreemem.

3. Ri,er City did not respond to City'S item 4. River City did request a copy of the
38 charters that the City had "rented" since January 1.2007. The City did not
respond to this request. River City did not seek the documents pursuant to the
Kansas Open Rocords Act.

The Ci'Y's Ses:ond Resoonse of August 6. 2007

The City provided the website for the "Q_Line:06 The City also indicated that ""..e also
usc the trolleys for regular roUie service."

Questions to the Panics from ITA of August 20. 2007

In an eITon to resolve inconsistencies within a pany's response andlor between a party's
response and documents provided. FTA raised the fo11owmg questions with the parties by
e-mail on August 20 and again on November 20. 2007. because neither pany responded
to the August 20. 2007 e-mail:

I. Each pany Slales in its response that the charters of the following dates were for
two vehicles: February 17. 2007. May 19. 2007 (wedding). May 25. 2007 and
May 26. 2007. The plain language oflhe signed agreements for May 25 and May
26 specify one vehicle. Do the panies wish 10 agree that the number of vehicles
provided in each instance was IWO vchicles as claimed by both Mr. Price and Mr.
Banasiak?

2. What was the understanding. ifany. between the parties when the addendum was
signed with regard to agreements for service emered imo prior 10 Ihe dale oflhe
addendum? Was this specifically discussed between the parties? The agreement
does nOt address this issue.

• 1be City slare, that the Q.Lioe is public lran$portIltion and in tbe response of No'.nile-. 20. 2007. from
R"-.,, City. River City dispute' this but provide, 00 .,'i<kno, to $Uppon irs d.;m .TId no argument to
suppon lho Slat.m:ot.
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3. With regard (0 the specific charter trips complained of by Mr. Price and to which
the City has responded. can the city identify which of these trips used City-owned
trolleys as opposed to FTA-funded vchicles? If the City can distinguIsh between
vehicles on Ihis basis. whal evidence docs it have 10 support Ihe distinction?

4. Is River City Trolley and Charter. L. L. C.. the only private provider 10 resporK! 10
the City's willing and able annual notice?

5. Would the City please reconcile the IWO stalements from ils July 271etter:
(a)"Federnlly-funded trolleys (two) are 1101 used for charters and are considered
pan oflhe bus division. operaling on regular fixed bus roules as well as our Q-line
route." (b) "ll is WTs intent 10 sell or lease three trolleys the city owns and
transfer two trolleys 10 the bus division:'

Responses priMe Partics 10 ErA's Questions of August 10. 2007

A. Mr. Price for River Citv

A I. River City was told all the charters were for 1\\ 0 vehicles: if they were not
for two, River City should have provided the services under both Agreements.

A1. Ri\er City should provide all services for two or fev.·er vehicles.

A3. Mr. Banasiak for the City would have to respond.

A4. River City was the only trolley charter seT\'ice company responding to the
City's willing and able annual notice.

AS. River City believes the Q-line service is also charter service.

B. Mr. Banasiak for thc City

AI. 1\0 response.

A1. Any signed contracts for a 2 trollcy charter requests by the City prior to the
date of the addendum would be honored by the City. as well as any I trollcy
charter requests prior to August 6.1006. the date of the original agre<:ment with
River City.

A3. Only city O\\T1ed trolleys (5) are assigned charters, while all ITA owned
trolleys (2) are part of the fixed route lle<:t and do not do chartcn. All of the
City's \'chicles arc numbered. including City-owned trollcys. Chartcr sheets
indicate all pertincnt infonnation about the charter. including the spcdfic trolley
number assigned to that charter. [~ote: the City then faxed 10 ITA the charter
sheets for the complained ofdates ofscrvicc.]
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A4. Rl\er City was the only prh-atc provider with trolleys that responded to the
City's willing and able notice, Olher private providers did respond to OUT notice
bUI none had trolleys and were not interested in doing trolley work.

AS. The City has ceased providing charters. unless there is an outstanding
contract before August 4. 2006, for one trolley, or [before]lhe December 21,
2006. date of the addendum with River City for two trolleys. It is the intenl of the
City to lake 2 of the 5 city-owned trolleys and transfer them 10 the bus division
and operate them on fixed routes. The three olher city-owned trolleys will either
be sold or leased, depending on what the pri\"ate sector is interested in. [Nole: the
City then faxed to FTA the nOlice of public hearing scheduled for December 6.
2007 at 10:00 A.M. to "offer the general public and private transponation
providers the option to lease or buy Wichita Transit's trolleys" and to "receive
input from the general public and private transponation providers regarding
providing trolley charter services for special events in Wichita in 2008."

The Law Applied Discussion

49 C.F.R. 604.9(a) provides: •• If a recipient desires to provide any chaner service using
FTA equipment or facilities the n:dpient must first detennine ifthcre are any private
chancr operators willing and able to provide the charter service", hich the recipient
desires 10 provide:' For the FTA's chaner rule to be applicable, either the vehicles used
to provide the charter service must ha,e been purchased in part using FTA funds, since
this is what constitutes"FTA equipment," or facilities whIch have been funded in pan
using FTA funds must have been used to store, maintain and/or operate vehicles (whether
publicly or privately funded) used 10 providing chaner service.

In this instance. the River City complains that its principal personally observed chaner
vehicles leaving the TOC.7 The City did not deny Ihatlrolley vehicles came and went
from the TOC but instead admitted in its July 27 response that 2 vehicles chanered to a
Mr. Tom Boles left the Center. Even though the actual chaner sheets maintained by the
City indicate thai these vehicles were not FTA-funded vehicles. they appear to have been
dispatched from the TOC. This would be allowable: (a) if the City complied with the
requirement of 49 C.F.R. 604.9(a) to annually detcnnine if there are willing and able
private providers; and ifit complied wilh the requirements of 49 eFR 604.9{b)(7) to enter
mtO an annual agreement with all such providers as to the types of trips the City would
provide; and if trolley trips '" ere among these types of trips.

The City argues that it detennined the willing and able providers and that it entered into
an agreement with all of several willing and able chaner providers. including River City.
and this allowed the City to provide chaner service pursuant to the exception at 49 CFR
604.9{b)(7).s This exception requires (a) thatthc agreement allows the City to operate

's« .up'" oole 5.
Os« ,upTil OOIe 3.
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the specific type of charter trip:9and. (b) that the agreement is provided for in the annual
notice to willing and able providern before undertaking any charter servicc'O.

In this instance, there is not claim offailurc to publish the annual nOlice. There is also not
a claim, "hich could have been made. thaI the City's notice improperly distinguished
between trolleys and buses instead oflreating both as rubber-tired vehicles eligible 10
perfonn any and all charter requests exceplloose for vans. 11 The claim is that the City
provided charter service in violation of its agreement with River City. The parties agree
that the August 4, 2006. Charter Agreement required the City 10 refer all requestS for a
single trolley 10 River City and thaI the December 2006 Addendum to the August 4,
2006, Charter Service Agreement required the City (0 refer all charters requesting l\'.'O or
fewer vehicles to River City. The parties disagree as to the meaning of these agreements.
The City argues that contracts entered into prior to the Agreement for service occurring
aftcr the Agreement and prior to the Addendum did not have to be referred to River City.
River City argucs that any trip for a single trollcy provided subsequent to the Agreement
and for t\\O trolleys subsequent to the Addendum had to be referred to River City.

I, Annual Notice Violations, In this instance, the documents provided by the City
indicate plainly that it took bookings and entered into agreements in 2006 with customers
to provide charter service in 2007. The first page of the agreement between Roxy Smith
and the City indicates that the agreement was entered into on June 29. 2006, for one
trolley to be provided on Friday, May 25. 2007. The first page of the agreement between
Erin Wooten and the City indicates that the agTCernent was entered into on September 19,
2006, for two trolleys on Saturday. April 21. 2007. This was prior to the December 21,
2006. annual notice. 49 C.F.R 604.9(b)(7) requires the City not to "undenake'· any
chaner service before the agreement was reached punmant to an annual notice. Yet the
City entered into written agreements to provide service before it provided the annual
notice and before it entered into the required subseQuent annual agreement with all
willing and able providers. Since the City did not produce in this case a subsequent
annual agreement with River City. FTA assumes that the City believed the Addendum to
the August 4. 2006 Chaner Service Agreement fulfilled the requirement for an annual
agreement after the December 29. 2006, tcnnination date of the underlying agreement l2

.

• 49 CFR 604.9(b)(7)(i),
10 49 CFR 604.9(b)(7)(ii.

1\ See 52 FR 42248, 42252 (publication of Questions and Answers related to implemenla!H)rl 01
the Chane< Rule: specifically, Q&A 25):

"25. Ou<:!stion' If the customer insists 00 a panicular type 01 equipment that the
willing and able private operator does not have, for example, a trolley lookalike,
aniculated or dooble-<.lecker bus. may the grantee provide the service?

Answer: The regulauoo recognizes only!wo categories 0' vehicles, i,e.,
buses or vans, Trolleys, anics. dOUble-deckers and other types of specifically modifled
equIpment are placed in one of these categories and are SUbject to the same rules as all
other equipment. Therefore. the grantee would be able to provide the service only rt one
of the regulatory exceptions applies."

Il w. not. !hal if tho City ""t.rod into a 2007 agreemenl "hJch hogan on Dtt.mboT 30, 2006, fOllowing
tho Ierntinatioo of tho 2006 agn-cn>:nt and on tho sarno ltmIS "luch both tho pan>O$ IoprO$CJIt C<m$litutod
tho agTttmonL thon tho \iolations lIOt«! "'""'"'in Mill occllll'td and all of the rationale for the docisilln still
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The City violated 49 C.F.R. 604.9(b)(7) when it entered into two charter service
agreements prior 10 the re<:juired annual notice and prior 10 the c:ote(Oulion oCa suhsequcm
annual agreement with all willing and able providers. including River City. and then
provided the trips_ Were FTA to a11o\>, grantees to ell1er into binding contracts for service
with individual ct.lstomers in advance oCthe annual notice and (ormation ofan annual
agreement related to types oflrips for any given year. then new entrants to the pnl'ate.
chaner market would be discouraged.

2. Breach o(ll1e Agreement wilh River Cjty----February 16. 2007 Charter Service. In this
instance. Ihe firsl page oCthe agreement between .\1r. Eric Wilson ofSullil'an Higdon &
Sink and the City indicates thllt the agreement was dated January 16. 2007, and thai it
was to provide two trolleys for service on Friday, February 16. 2007. This violated the
Dt-cember 2006 Addendum to the August 4, 2006, Charter Service Agreement that
required the City to refer all charter requests for t'" 0 or fe'" I.'f vehicles to Rh'er City. A
violation occurred even if the City prmided the charter inadvertently as it claims because
the Addendum was new.

3 No Breach of the AO!reeJTlent WIth River Cltv April 21, 2007 Charter Service, Thc
flUed chaner service scheduling sheet for Apnl 21. 2007. indicates that the City provided
a single trolley 10 Ashlyn Edwards for a trip betwe<:n Alpha Phi (sorority house) and the
Larkspur Restaurant. This "'ould have violated the December 2006 Addendum to the
August 4. 2006. Charter Service Agre<:ment that required the City to refer all charter
requests for two or fewer vehicles 10 River City. but for the fact River City referred the
party back to the City. Evidence has be<:n provided to support this assertion in the form of
e-mail exchanges between the City's scheduler and River City's scheduler dated March
28,2007. The April 21. 2007 charter trip ",as not a charter violation on the grounds cited
by complainant.

4. Breach oftht Agreement with River Citv-----Y!ay 19, 2007 Charter Service. The fa.~ed

charter service scheduling sheet for May 19, 2007 indicates that the City provided two
trolleys to Tom Bowles for a "'edding at Eastminster Church. and the City admitted that
the trolleys "lefi" from the TOC. The vehicles "'cre not FTA-funded vehicles: however.
because the weight of the evidence suggests that the two vehicles (at a minimum) were
dispatched from the TOC. which is an FTA-funded facility. the vehicles were subject to
the charter rule. Therefore. the chartering of thesc t"'o trollcys violated thc DC\:cmbcr
2006 Addendum to the August 4. 2006, Charter Service Agreement that required the City
to refer all charter requests for two or fewer vehicles to River City.

5. No Breach of the Agreement with River City--May 25, 2007 Charter Service. The
City-provided first page of the agreement between Roxie Smith and the City indicates
that one trolley was provided_ The flUed scheduling she<:t for the service and the

applie" City ha' 001 pro,',d,d 5""h an agrrm.,nl d.,p", FTA" ,-mailed <nquiry of November 21, 2007.
re«ue"il13 addilionat suppon for the "'J'OTl'" thai ,hc~ wa, an Augu" 4, 2006 agrttmenl aDd a DecemMr
11. 2007 agr..,,,,,,nl. funhcnnore the <I.1le of the Aug"'l 4 a~"",nl i' in doubt benuse the Type-v,rinea
year has been marl:td through by haDd sucb thallhc dare of NmmencemcnJ could ha,-. bee11100S 1M' 1006.
How",-"" since Ri'-er City lI;.s flOt di>puted the dat, of \he ~grttmen~ ITAhas accepted 1M dat~ 1$2006_



10

notations thereon for actual service reflect that three vehicles were scheduled. Mileage
for three vehicles is noted on the scheduling sheets. River City has provided hear say
evidence that only l\l."O vehicles were provided. FTA finds the scheduling sheets to be
more credible evidence than hear say. Therefore, ITA finds that because the number of
vehicles provided exceed two. there was no violation of the December 2006 Addendum
to the August 4, 2006. Chaner Service Agreemenlthat required the city to refer all
chaner requests for two or fewer vehicles to River City.

6. No Breach crlhe Agreement wilh River CjwnMay 26. 2007. Chaner Service. The
City-provided faxed scheduling sheet for service show that it was for three trolleys for
Patricia DeHan \0 lake wedding guests from the Nonheast comer of 21" and Oliver to
Crestview Lake. Therefore. FTA finds thal because the number of vehicles provided
exceed two, there was no violation of the December 2006 Addendum to the August 4,
2006, Chaner Service Agreement that required the city to refer all chaner requests for
two or fewer vehicles to River City.

7. Remedies Available. The Federal Transit l.1w. at 49 USc. 5323(d)(2)(B) requires
that ITA correct any violation that has occurred. In doing so. FTA has broad contract
remedies pursuant to the Master Agreement. However. FTA has no authority to require
direct payment of the fees andlor profits earned from improper chmer services to
complainant as complainant has l"C<:luested. Furthcnnore, al 49 U.s.C. S323(d)(2)(C)
ITA as the delegate of the Secretary is l"C<:luired to "bar a recipient or an operator from
receiving Federal transit assistance in an amount the Secretary considers appropriate if
the Secretary finds a pattern of violations of the agreement.·· While FTA has not engaged
in a final rukmaking to implement 49 U,S.C. S323(d)(2)(C) and the concept ofa ''pattern
of violations:' it has received and is considering public response to its Notice of Proposed
Rulemaking. published February IS. 2007 in the Federal Register (72FR 7526).
Clearly. a "pattern of violations" is not a single instance ofunauthorizcd chaner service.
In order to prove a pattern of violations. a single complaint would have to include
multiple violations which an: related.

In the current instance. FTA finds that the City, a recipient and operator of transit:
violated the annual notice requirements by entering into at least two contracts (which the
City subsequently fulfilled) for chaner service prior to issuing its annual notice to
identify willing and able private providers and prior to reaching agreement with all such
willing and able private providers; dispatched at last twO of its non FTA-funded trolley
vehicles from an ITA·funded transit facility making them subject to the chaner
regulation. and then breached the agreement with the complainant River City by
providing improper charter service on February 16, 2007, and again on May 19. 2007.
Finally, FTA finds that the gram~: had pre\'iously been found in its triennial review of
2005 to have violated the charter regulation by storing its non-FTA-funded trolleys in the
TOC without complying with 49 CFR Pan 604; and, had previously been provided with
an advisory chaner opinion, dated August 11, 2005 related to use of trolleys and shunle
service. that explicitly stated that the notice given soliciting ,,'il1ing and able providers
must be annual nOlice and Ihal any agreement t'Tltered must be emered annually. FTA
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finds Ihal although there is a single complaint, Ibis accumulation of related violations is
sufficiem to find that a patlern of violalions exists

Conclusions and Specific Remedies Ordered:

1. FTA orders Ihe Cily of Wichita to cease and desist from all improper chaner
operations using FTA-funded equipment and/or facilities. The City must remo\'c
its priv3tely-owned vehicles from the FTA-funded TOC and must not maintain,
store. operate or dispatch or otherwise perform any function related to the
vehicles from this facility (and any other ITA-funded facility) unless the City
fully complies wilh the 49 CFR Part 604.

2. ITA orders the City ofWichit3 10 republish its annual charter notice ifil wishes
to provide any charter service using FTA-funded equipment and/or facilities. In
this notice. the City shall not distinguish ber."een any vehicle types except buses
and vans. Tro][eY5 shall be treated as buses.

3. ITA finds thm a pattern ofviolations exists be<:ause the grantee: violated the
annual notice requirements by entering into at least two contracts (which the City
subsequently fulfilled) for charter service prior to issuing its annual notice to
identify willing and able private providers and prior to reaching agreement with
all such willing and able private providers; dispatched at last two ofilS non ITA­
funded lrolley vehicles from an FTA-funded transit facility making them subject
to the charter regulation, and then breached the agreemenl with the complainanl
River City by providing improper charter service on February 16. 2007. and again
on May 19. 2007. These five violaliol15, coupled with the aggravating
circumstances of a similar finding in the 2005 triennial review. receipt ofan
advisory opinion dealing with trolley service, and receipt of a pre\~ous complaint
by this same complainant. clearly indicatc a pattern of violations.

4. FTA hereby bars thc City from receipt of an amou.nt of fu.nds, which represents
the profit earned by the City from conducting the unauthorized charter operations.
These funds will be withheld from Section 5307 funds apportioned in FY2007
but not yet obligated in any grant to the City. The City shall provide FTA within
ten daY5 ofthc date of this letter with an accounling of the fees earned, the fully
allocated costs and how derived. and the net profit for the trips which occurred on
February 16. April 21 ,May 19 and May 25. 2007. so that FrA can make a final
determination of the amount to be withheld.

5. Notwithstanding the har described in item 4 above, FTA requires the City to
maintain its current level ofeffort and financial support to panttransit
subrecipienls.


